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Statement of Management Responsibilities
Angostura Holdings Limited

Management is responsible for the following:

Preparing and fairly presenting the accompanying consolidated financial statements of
Angostura Holdings Limited (the Company), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2016, the consolidated statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information;

Ensuring that the Company keeps proper accounting records;

Selecting appropriate accounting policies and applying them in a consistent manner;
Implementing, monitoring and evaluating the system of internal control that assures security
of the Company’s assets, detection/prevention of fraud, and the achievement of the
Company’s operational efficiencies;

Ensuring that the system of internal control operated effectively during the reporting period;

Producing reliable financial reporting that comply with laws and regulations, including the
Companies Act; and

Using reasonable and prudent judgement in the determination of estimates.

In preparing these audited consolidated financial statements, management utilised the International
Financial Reporting Standards, as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Trinidad and Tobago. Where International
Financial Reporting Standards presented alternative accounting treatments, management chose

those

considered most appropriate in the circumstances.

Nothing has come to the attention of management to indicate that the Company will not remain a
going concern for the next twelve months from the reporting date, or up to the date the
accompanying consolidated financial statements have been authorised for issue, if later.

Management affirms that it has carried out its responsibilities as outlined above.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Shareholders of Angostura Holdings Limited

Opinion

We have audited the consoclidated financial statements of {"the Company”), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2016, the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2016 and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in
the Republic of Trinidad and Tobago, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and with IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Revenue Recognition

The risk - Revenue is recognised when the risks and rewards of products have been
transferred to the customer. The Company operates in a competitive industry in local and
international markets. The Company is publicly traded and revenue is a key performance
measure. There is a risk that revenue may be overstated because of fraud resulting from
the pressure management may feel to achieve performance targets at the reporting
period end. Management bonuses is partially based on the year end profit. Therefore,
there is a risk for management to overstate profit as it has a direct correlation to their
bonuses.

Our response - Our audit procedures included considering the appropriateness of the
Company's revenue recognition accounting policies and assessing compliance with the
policies in terms of applicable accounting standards. We tested the effectiveness of the
Company’s controls over recording of sales transactions.

We assessed sales transactions taking place at either side of the reporting date as well as
credit notes issued after the year end date to assess whether that revenue was recognised
in the correct period. We also developed an expectation of the current year's revenue,
based on trend analysis information, taking into account historical monthly sales and
returns information and other understanding of each market. We then compared this
expectation to actual resulis.

Impairment of receivables

The risk - The Company has significant trade receivables with distributors and customers
in the retail industry. A number of companies in this industry are under financial stress
and, therefore, there is a risk over the recoverability of these balances.

Our response - Our audit procedures included the design and implementation the
Company's controls over the receivables impairment process; testing the receipt of cash
after the year end; and testing the adequacy of the Company's provisions against trade
receivables by assessing the director’'s assumptions, taking account of externally available
data on trade credit exposures and our own knowledge of recent bad debt experience in
this industry. We also considered the adequacy of the Company’s disclosures about the
degree of estimation involved in arriving at the provision.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)
Valuation of inventory

e The risk - The Company's inventory is carried in the consolidated financial statements at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. International sales in the industry can be
volatile with consumer demand changing significantly based on current trends. As a
result there is a risk that the carrying value of inventory may exceed its net realisable
value.

o Our response - We tested sales information for finished goods and consumption reports
for raw materials, and used these to identify any items which may be slow-moving, or may
have a net realisable value of lower than cost. We also considered the adequacy of the
Company's disclosures about the degree of estimation involved in arriving at the provision.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Company’s annual report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. When we read the Company’s annual report, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

+ FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
{continued)

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Dushyant
Sookram.

LM

Chartered Accountants

Port of Spain
Trinidad and Tobago
March 27, 2017




ANGOSTURA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2016
(Expressed in Trinidud and Tobago Dollurs)
Notes 2016 2015
$'000 $'000
ASSETS
Non-current asscts
Property, plant and equipment 9 357.398 359,638
Available-for-sale assets 10 109 109
Retirement benefit asset 12 348.680 355,237
706,187 714.984
Current assets
Inventories 13 214,077 227,077
Assets held-for-sale 14 2,056 3,439
I'rade and other receivables 15 191,873 274,365
Short-term investments 16 98.513 29,297
Cash and cash equivalents 17 182.749 125,302
689,268 659,480
Taotal asscts 1,395 455 1,374,464
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 18 118.558 118,558
Other reserves 19 99,915 99,915
Retained eamings 713,950 662.274
Total equity 932.423 880,747
Liabilities
Non-current linbilities
Retirement benefit obligation 12 293,937 294,595
Deferred lax liability 21 73,598 61,284
367,535 355,879
Current linbilities
Borrowings 20 30,000 50,600
Trade and other payables 22 65,497 87.238
95,497 137.838
Total liabilities 463,032 493,717
Total equity and liabilitics S,45585
The accompanying notes are an imtegral part of these consolidated financiallstatements. |
IS~
- / ) ) Director L - Director
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ANGOSTURA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31, 2016

(Expressed in Trinidad and Tobago Dollars)

Notes 2016 2015
$°000 $'000

Revenue 620,469 649,409
Cost of goods sold 249.123 266,025
Gross profit 371,346 383,384
Selling and marketing expenses (135,888) {116,453)
Administrative expenses (62.476) (54211)
Results from operating activities 172,982 212,718
Finance costs 24 {(1,LI181) (1,402)
Finance income 042 154
Results from continuing operations 172,443 211,470
Other income 25 1,888 2,047
Dividend income 26 220 1,108
Foreign exchange gains 27 12,802 620
Legal claim expense 28 (15,948) -
Fair value gain on assets held-for-sale 4 - 2,745
Profit before tax 171,405 217,990
Taxation expense 29 (49.448) (54.318)
Profit for the year 121.957 163.672
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Re-measurements of defined benefit (liability) asset 12 (5,836) (5,778)
Related 1ax 21 1.459 1.444
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax {4.377) (4.334)
Total comprehensive income for the year 117,580 159,338

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,




ANGOSTURA HOLDINGS LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income {continued)

Year ended December 31, 2016
{Expressed in Trinidad and Tobago Dollars)

Notes 2016 2015
$°000 $°000
Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 121,957 163,672
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 117,580 159,338
Dividend paid per share __22¢ 26¢
Earnings per share - Basic and Diluted 30 $ 0,59 0.80

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




ANGOSTURA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended December 31, 2016
{Expressed in Trinidad and Tobago Dollars)

Balance at January 1, 2015

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Transactions with equity holders
recognised dircctly in equity

Dividends to equity holders

Balance at December 31, 2015

Balance at January 1, 2016

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Transactions with equity holders
recognised directly in equity

Dividends to equity holders

Balance at December 31, 2016

Share Other Retained Total
Capital Reserves Earnings Equity
5000 $°000 5000 $'000
(Note 18) (Note 19)
118.558 99915 556.573 775.046
- - 163,672 163,672
- - {4,334} (4.334)
- - 159,338 159.338
- - (53.637) {53.637)
118,558 999 662,274 880,747
118.558 99915 662.274 880,747
- - 121,957 121,957
- - (4.377) (4.377)
- - 1i7.580 117,580
- - {65.904) (65,904)
118,558 99915 713,950 932,423

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




ANGOSTURA HOLDINGS LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2016
{Expressed in Trinidad and Tobago Dollars)

Notes 2016 2015
$°000 $'000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year 121,957 163,672
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 9 15,717 15,365
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 25 389 (72)
Gain on settlement of financial liability - (138)
Gain on disposal of investments - {1,480)
Foreign exchange gain 27 (12,802) (620)
Fair value gain on assets held-for-sale 14 - (2,745)
Finance costs 24 1,181 1,402
Finance income {642) (154)
Dividend income 26 {220) {1,108)
Adjustment to property, plant and equipment 9 526 2,053
Taxation expense 49.448 54.318
Operating profit before working capital changes 175,534 230,493
Change in employee benefits 2,223 (140)
Change in trade and other receivables 84,172 (32,618)
Change in inventories 13,001 (7,152)
Change in trade and other payables (21.741) (18.735)
Cash generated from operating activities 253,209 171,848
Interest paid {1,309) (1,573)
Corporation tax refunds received 1,157 -
Corporation tax paid (48,511) {43,689)
Retirement benefits paid — severance payments (644) (1.661)
Net cash from operating activities 213,902 124.925
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 139 365
Proceeds from disposal ol investmenls - 1,480
Proceeds from disposal of assets held-for-sale - 936
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment {14,392) (30,091)
Additions to investments {67,276) (29,297)
Dividends received 220 1,108
Interest received 642 154
Net cash used in investing activities (80.667) (55,345)
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ANGOSTURA HOLDINGS LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2016
{Expressed in Trinidad and Tobago Dollars)

Notes 2016 2015
$r000 $°000

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid {65,904) (53,637)
Proceeds from borrowings 30,000 50,600
Repayment of borrowings (50.600) (114.628)
Net cash used in financing activities (86.504) (117.665)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 46,731 (48,085)
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 125,302 173,387
Effect of movement in exchange rate on cash held 10.716 -
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 17 182,749 125,302

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




ANGOSTURA HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016

1. Reporting Entity

Angostura Holdings Limited (the Company) is a limited liability company incorporated and
domiciled in the Republic of Trinidad and Tobago. The Company’s registered office is Corner
Eastern Main Road and Trinity Avenue, Laventille, Trinidad and Tobago. The Company has its
primary listing on the Trinidad and Tobago Stock Exchange. It is a holding company whose
subsidiaries are engaged in the manufacture and sale of rum, ANGOSTURA® aromatic bitters
and other spirits, the bottling of beverage alcohol and other beverages on a contract basis, and
the production and sale of food products. The consolidated financial statements of the Company
as at and for the year ended December 31, 2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group” and individually as the “Group companies”).

The principal subsidiaries are:

Company Country of Incorporation Percentage Owned
Angostura Limited Trinidad and Tobago 100%
Trinidad Distillers Limited Trinidad and Tobago 100%

The Company’s ultimate parent entity is C L Financial Limited (CLF), a company incorporated
in the Republic of Trinidad and Tobago.

These consolidated financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
March 27, 2017.

2.  Basis of Accounting

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs} as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB).

Delails of the Group’s accounting policies, including changes during the year, are included
in Notes 5 and 6.

(b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except
for the following items, which are measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date:

- non-derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
lair value;

- available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value;

12



ANGOSTURA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016

Basis of Accounting {continued)

(b) Basis of measurement (continued)
- assets held-for-sale are measured at fair value;

- net defined benefit asset (obligation) is recognised as fair value of plan assets, adjusted
by re-measurements through other comprehensive income, less the present value of the
defined benefit obligation adjusted by experience gains (losses) on revaluation, limited
as explained in Note 5(j)(ii);

- investments in equity-accounted investees are measured using the equity method;

- cerigin freehold/leasehold land and buildings which are measured at fair value less
depreciation.

(¢) Reclassification of prior year presentation

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current year’s
presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on the reported results of operations.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Trinidad and Tobago dollars, which is
the Group’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.

Use of Estimates and Judgements

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimaltes and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates
are recognised prospectively, unless those revisions are the result of a change in accounting
policy or a correction of a significant error, in which case the revision is required retrospectively,
in the earliest reporting period.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended December 31, 2016 is included in the
following notes:

-~  Note 12 - Retirement benefit {asset) obligation - Measurement of defined benefit
assets and obligations, key actuarial assumptions

13



ANGOSTURA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016

4.  Usc of Estimates and Judgements (continued)

- Note 13 - Inventories — provision for obsolescence

- Notel5 - Trade and other receivables — provision for impairment

- Note2l - Deferred taxation — timing differences on accounting and tax values of
praperty, plant and equipment

- Note33 - Reclated party transactions — provision for impairment.

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effects on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements is included
in the following notes:

- Note 6 = Determination of fair values
- Nole 32 -  Leases — Delermination of the lease classification.

5.  Significant Accounting Policies

The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies as set out in Note 5 to all
periods presented in these consolidated financial statements.

(a) Basis of consolidation

()

(i)

Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when
control is transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is
generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired. Any
goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase
is recognised in profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as
incurred, except if they are related to the issue of debt or equity securities. The
consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-
existing relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entitics controlled by the Group. The Group ‘controls’ an entity when
it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which control
ceases.




ANGOSTURA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016

58

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation {continued)

(iii)

(iv)

)

i)

Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. Changes in the Group’s interest in the
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control arc accounted for as cquity
transactions.

Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related non-controlling interest and other
components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is
lost.

Interest in equity-accounted investees

The Group’s interest in equity-accounted investees comprise interest in associates and
joint ventures.

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not
control or joint control over the financial and operating policies. A joint venture isan
arrangement in which the Group has joint control, whereby the Group has rights to
the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights Lo its assets and obligations for iis
liabilitics.

Interests in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.
They are recognised at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprchensive income of equity-accounted inveslees, until
the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases.

As at the year end the Group had an interest in one joint venture (Note 11).

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and cxpenses
arising from intra-group transactions, arc climinated on consolidation. Unrealised
gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees are eliminated against
the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

15



ANGOSTURA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016

5.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Foreign currency

()

(ii)

Foreign currency tfransactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional
currencies of Group companies at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Monctary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign
currency are are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. However,
forcign currency differences arising from the translation of available-for-sale equity
investments (except on impairment in which case foreign currency differences that have
been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss) are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Foreign currency differences are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value
adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated to the functional currency at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) and
accumulated in the retained earnings, except to the extent that the translation difference
is allocated to non-controlling interests.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that control,
significant influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount in retained earnings
related to that foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.

If the Group disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but retains control, then the
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interests.
When the Group disposes of only part of an associate or joint venture while retaining
significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount
is reclassified to profit or loss.




ANGOSTURA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016

5.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c)

Financial instruments

Financial instruments include available-for-sale assets, trade receivables, shori-term
investments, cash and cash equivalents, borrowings and trade and other payables.

()

Classification

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets into the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity financial assets,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale assets.

Loans are created when the Group provides assets other than trading goods and
services to a debtor, and is entitled to payment for the same on the agreed terms.
Receivables are created when the Group provides trading goods and services to a
debtor and is entitled to payment for same on the terms generally offered for such
transactions. Receivables are generally created with the intention of short term profit
taking. Loans and receivables include trade receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are sccurities which are cither
acquired for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price, or are securitics
included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term profit taking exists.

Held-to-maturity assets are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity that the Group has the intent and ability to hold to maturity. These
include certain debt investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as such, or are not financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, or held-to-maturity. Available-for-sale instruments include certain
equity investments.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the following catcgories:
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities.

A financial instrument is classified as a financial liability if it is (1) a contractual
obligation to deliver cash or another assel to another entity, or to exchange financial
assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that arc potentially
unfavourable to the reporting entity; or (2) a contract that will or may be settled in the
reporting entity’s own equity instruments under certain circumstances.




ANGOSTURA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stalements

December 31, 2016

5.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(¢} Financial instruments {continued)

(ii} Non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities - Recognition and

derecognition

The Group initially recognises loans and receivables and debt securities issued, on the
date when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities arc
initially recognised on the trade date when the entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or il transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in
a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset.
Any interest in such derecognised financial assets that is created or retained by the
Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Group derccognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire.

{iii) Non-derivative financial assets - Measurement

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial assct is classificd as at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as
held-for-trading or is designated as such on initial recognition. Directly attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and changes therein, including
any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Held-to-matrity financial assets

These assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Financial instruments (continued)

(ii}) Non-derivative financial assets - Measurement (continued)

(iv)

Loans and receivables

These assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Available-for-sale assets

These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein,
other than impairment losses and foreign currency differences on debt instruments,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve. When these assets are derecognised, the gain or loss accumulated
in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

Non-derivative financial liabilities - Measurement

A financial liability is classilied as at fair value through profit or loss il it is classified
as held-lor-trading or is designated as such on initial recognition. Dirccltly attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and changes therein,
including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.

Other non-derivative {inancial liabilities are initially measured at fair value less any
dircctly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Financial instruments (continued)

v

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of linancial position when, and only when, the Group has a current legally enforceable
right to offsct the recognised amounts and intends cither to settle on a net basis or to
realise the assct and settle the liability simultancously.

Income and cxpenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRS,
or for gains and losscs arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the
Group’s trading activities.

(vi} Amortised cost measurement

(vii}

The amortised cost of a {inancial asset or liabilily is the amount at which the financial
assel or liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus
or minus the cumulative amortisation using the cffective interest method, of any
difference between the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any
reduction for impairment.

Fair value measurement

*Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date
in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Group
has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted
price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if
transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume
to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Group uses valuation
techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable inpuls and minimize the use
of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors
that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.
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Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

(¢) Financial instruments {continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is
normally the transaction price — i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or
received. If the Group determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from
the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability, nor based on a valuation technique
that uses only data from observable markets, then the financial instrument is initially
measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at
initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is
recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but
no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or
the transaction is closed out.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then
the Group measures assets and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short
positions at an ask price.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the
end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Designation at fair value through profit or loss

The Group has designated financial asscts and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss in either of the following circumstances:

- The assets or liabilities are managed, cvaluated and reported internally on a fair
value basis.

- The designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise.

Note 6 sets out the amount of each class of financial asset or financial liability that
has been designated at fair value through profit or loss. A description of the basis
for cach designation is set out in the note for the relevant asset or liability class.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment

()

(ii)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment, other than land and buildings, are measured
at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing cost, less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Land and buildings are measured at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation
on buildings.

Land and buildings are revalued by qualified independent experts every five years
and gains and losses are treated as follows:

- Gains are recorded in the revaluation reserve except where a gain directly offsets
previous losses, in which case the gain is recognised in profit or loss to the extent
that it offsets previous losses. Any additional gains are recognised within the
revaluation reserve.

- Losses are recognised directly in profit or loss except to the extent that a loss
offsels previous gains, in which case the loss is recognised against the revaluation
reserve to the extent that it offsets previous gains. Any additional loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, then they are accounted for as scparate items (major componcents) of property,
plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised
in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the market value or cost of an asset less its estimated residual
value, Significant components of individual assets are assessed and if a component
has a useful life that is different from the remainder of that asset, that component is
depreciated separately.
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Significant Accounting Policies {conlinued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(iii) Depreciation (continued)

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-
line method for buildings and reducing balance method for all other assets, to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives.

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives
unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease term.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years informed
depreciation rates on assets are as follows:

— Buildings 25 - 50 years
— Plant, machinery and equipment 3- 15 years
- Casks and pallets 6 ycars.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted if appropriate.

(e) Intangible assets

(i)

(ii)

Research and development

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalised only if the expenditure can be measured
reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future
economic benefits are probable, and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources
to completle development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, il is recognised in
profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, development expenditure
is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets, including customer relationships, patents and trademarks,
which are acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives, are measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e)

N

(8

Intangible assets (continued)
(iii) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specilic asset to which it relates. All other expenditure,
including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in
profit or loss as incurred,

{iv} Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated
residual values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and is
generally recognised in profit or loss. Goodwill is not amortised.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at cach reporting
date and adjusted if appropriate.

The Group currently has no intangible assets.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of
inventories is based on average cost, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs, and other costs incurred in bringing them to
their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in
progress, cost inciudes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal
operating capacity.

Conversion costs include losses sustained in the alcohol aging process for the conversion
of current distillate to aged distillate, as inventory is prepared for further blending and
processing,

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Impairment

(i)  Non-derivative financial assets

Financial assets not classified as at fair value through profit or loss, including any
interest in equily-accounted inveslees, are assessed at each reporting dale to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(@

Impairment (continued)

i

Non-derivative financial assets (continued)
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

- default or delinquency by a debtor

- restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not
otherwise consider

- indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy

- adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial
difficulties

- observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrcase in expected cash
flows from a group of financial assets

For an investment in an equity security, objective evidence of impairment includes a
significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost. The Group considers
a decline of 20% to be significant and a period of nine months to be prolonged.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Group considers evidence of impairment for these assets at both an individual
asset and a collective level. All individually significant assets are individually
assessed for impairment. Those found not to be impaired are then collectively assessed
for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet individually identified. Assets
that are not individually significant arc collectively assessed for impairment.
Collective assessment is carried out by grouping together assets with similar risk
characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical information on the timing
of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, and makes an adjustment il current
economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater
or lesser than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s
original elTective interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in
an allowance account.
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Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

(g)

Impairment (continued)

{

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

When the Group considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset,
the relevant amounts are written off. [f the amount of impairment loss subsequently
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an cvent occurring after the
impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

[mpairment losses on available-for-sale financial asscts arc recognised by
reclassifying the losses accumulated in the fair value reserve to profit or loss. The
amount reclassified is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in profit or loss. If the fair value of an impaired available-for-
sale debt security subsequently increases and the increase can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, then the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
for an investment in an equity instrument classified as available-for-sale are not
reversed through profit or loss.

Equity-accounted investees

An impairment loss in respect ol an equity-accounted investee is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount of the investment with its carrying amount. An
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss, and is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount,

Non-financial assets

At cach reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial
assets (other than biological assets, investment property, inventories and deferred tax
assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets (referred to cash generating units or CGUSs). Goodwill
arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(@)

(h)

(i)

Impairment (continued)
(i) Non-financial asseis (continued)

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated luture cash flows,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessmients of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or
CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro-rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assel’s carrying amount docs
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprise cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Assets held-for-sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, are classified as
held-for-sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather
than through continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs 1o sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated
first to goodwill, and then to the remaining assets and liabilitics on a pro-rata basis, except
that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefit
assets, investment property or biological assets, which continue to be measured in
accordance with the Group’s other accounting policies.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

)

Assets held-for-sale {continued)

[mpairment losses on initial classification as held-for-sale or held-for-distribution and
subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss. Once
classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are no longer
amortised or depreciated, and any equity-accounted investee is no longer equity accounted.

Employce benefits

Retirement benefits for employees are provided by defined benefit schemes. The Group
operates two defined benefit schemes, one trustee-administered and the other self-
administered. The assets of the trustee-administered scheme are held in a consolidated fund
and the plan is funded by contributions from the Group and its employees. The self-
administered scheme is funded entirely by the Group out of cash resources, with no
underlying assets. Both schemes are subject to annual valuations by independent qualified
actuaries.

(i)  Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related
service is provided. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that
a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available. The Group currently has
a defined contribution plan for post-retirement medical benefits, None of the Group’s
pension plans are defined contribution plans.

{ii} Defined benefit plans

The Group’s net abligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately
for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount, and deducting the fair value
ol any plan asselts.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a
potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of
economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of
cconomic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding
requirements.
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)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i}

(iij)

(iv)

)

Defined benefit plans (continued)

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset
ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income. The Group determines the net interest expense or income on
the net defined benefit asset or liability for the period, by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period,
to the net defined benefit asset or liability, taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit asset or lability during the period resulting from contributions and
benefit payments.

Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised
in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting
change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognises gains and losses on
the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Other long-term employee benefiis

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount
of future benefit that employces have carned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value, Re-
measurements are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises costs for a
restructuring. If benefits are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of
the end of the reporting period, then they are discounted.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A
liability is recognised for the amount cxpected to be paid if the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided
by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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(k) Provisions

M

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The umwinding
of the discount is recognised as a finance cost.

Warranties

A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying products or services are sold,
based on hislorical warranty data and a weighting of possible outcomes against their
associated probabilities.

Restructuring

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group has approved a detailed and
formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring either has commenced or has been
announced publicly. Future operating losses are not provided for.

Site restoration
A provision for site restoration in respect of contaminated land, and the related expense, is
recognised when the land is contaminated.

Onerous contracts

A provision for oncrous contracts is mecasured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the
contract. Before a provision is established, the Group recognises any impairment loss on
the assets associated with that contract.

Revenue
(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when persuasive evidence exists, usually in the form of an
executed sales agreement, that the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the
associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no
continuing management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can
be mecasured reliably.

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of excise taxes, returns, trade
discounts and volume rebates.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()  Revenue (continued)

()

(i)

Sale of goods (continued)

If it is probable that discounts will be granted and the amount can be measured
reliably, then the discount is recognised as a reduction of revenue as the sales are
recognised. The timing of the transfer of risks and rewards varies depending on the
individual terms of the sales agreement.

Lovalty programme

Revenue is allocated between the loyalty programme and the other components of the
sale. The amount allocated to the loyalty programme is deferred, and is recognised as
revenue when the Group has fulfilled its obligations to supply the discounted products
under the terms of the programme, or when it is no lenger probable that the points
under the programme will be redeemed.

Rendering of services

If the services under a single arrangement are rendered in different reporting periods,
then the consideration is allocated on a relative fair value basis between the different
services, across the reporting periods.

The Group recognises revenue from rendering of services in proportion to the stage
of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The stage of completion is
assessed based on surveys of work performed.

(m) Leasecs

)

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

At inception of an arrangement, the Group determines whether the arrangement is or
contains a lease.

At inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease, the Group
separates payments and other consideration required by the arrangement into those
for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of their relative lair values. If
the Group concludes for a finance lease that it is impracticable to separate the
payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount equal to
the fair value of the underlying asset; subsequently, the liability is reduced as
payments are made and an imputed finance cost on the liability is recognised using
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(m) Leases (continued)

(ii) Leased assets

Leases of property, plant and equipment that transfer to the Group substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. The leased assets
are measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the
present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that
asset.

Asscts held under other leases are classified as operating leases and are not recognised
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position,

(iii} Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
linc basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the
finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is
allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

{(n) Finance income, finance costs and dividend income

(o)

The Group’s finance income and finance costs include:

- inlerest income
- inlerest expense
- dividend income

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method. Dividend
income is recognised in profit or loss on the date that the Group’s right to receive payment
is established.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items are recognised directly
in equity or in other comprehensive income.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0) Taxation (continued)

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss
for the year, and any adjustment (0 tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.
The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It
is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current
tax also includes any tax arising from dividends. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset
only if certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax

Deferred lax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss;

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future; and

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on
business plans for individual subsidiaries in the Group and the reversal of temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at cach reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such
reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

KX}
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0)

()

(@)

Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of ils assets and liabilities. For this purpose, the carrying amount ol invesiment
property measured at [air value is presumed to be recovered through sale, and the Group
has not rebutted this presumption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

Segment reporting

Segment results that are reported to the Chief Executive Officer, Executive Management
tecam, and these charged with Governance include items directly attributable to a segment
as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise
assets and liabilities, finance costs and income, other income and expenses, dividend
income, impairment charges, foreign exchange gains and losses, legal claim expense and
tax expenses and income.

Share capital
Ordinary shares

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a
deduction from equity. Income tax relating to transaction costs of an equity transaction are
accounted for in accordance with [AS 12 Income Tax.

Repurchase and reissue of share capital (treasury shares)

When shares recognised as equity are repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid,
which includes directly attributable costs, is recognised as a deduction from equity.
Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares and are classified within share capital
as a deduction. When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received
is recognised as an increase in equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction
is presented within share premium.
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(r) New and forthcoming standards and interpretations

(i) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the Company

A number of new, revised and amended standards and interpretations came into effect for
annual periods beginning on or afier January 1, 2016. The Group has assessed them and
has adopted those which are relevant to its financial statements.

IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and Discontinued Operations

The standard has been amended to clarify that if an entity changes the method of
disposal of an asset (or disposal group) i.e. reclassifies from held-for-distribution to
owners to held-for-sale (or vice versa) without any time lag, then the change in
classification is considered a continuation of the original plan of disposal, and the
entity continues to apply held-for-distribution or held-for-sale accounting. At the time
of the change method, the entity measures the carrying amount of the asset (or
disposal group) and recognises any written down impairment loss or subsequent
increase in the fair value less cost to sell/distribute the asset {or disposal group). If the
entity determines that an asset (or disposal group) no longer meets the criteria (o be
classified as held-for-distribution, then it ceases held-for-distribution accounting in
the same way as it would cease held-for-sale accounting.

The amendment did not impact the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures

This standard has been amended to clarify when servicing arrangements are in the
scope of disclosure requircments on continuing involvement in transferred financial
assets in cases when they are derecognised in their entirety. A servicer is deemed to
have continuing involvement if it has an interest in the future performance of the
transferred asset e.g. if the servicing fee is dependent on the amount or timing of the
cash flows collected from the transferred financial asset however, the collection and
remittance of cash flows from the translerred asset to the transferee is not, in itself]
sufficient to be considered ‘continuing involvement’.

IFRS 7 has also been amended to clarify that the additional disclosures required by
Disclosures: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendment to
IFRS 7) are not specifically required for inclusion in condensed interim financial
statements for all interim periods; however, they are required if the general
requirements of [AS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, require their inclusion.

The amendment did not impact the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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5. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(s) New and forthcoming standards and interpretations (continued)

(i) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the Company (continued)

IAS 19 Employee Benefits

The standard has been amended to clarify that high-quality corporate bonds or
government bonds used in determining the discount rate should be issued in the same
currency in which the benefits are to be paid. Consequently, the depth of the market
for high-quality corporate bonds should be assessed at the currency leve! and not the
country level.

The amendment did not impact the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IAS 34 Imterim Financial Reporiing

The amendments clarify that certain disclosures, if they are not included in the notes
to interim financial statements, may be disclosed elsewhere in the interim financial
report. The interim financial report is incomplete if the interim financial statements
and any disclosure incorporated by cross-reference are not made available to the users
of the interim financial statements on the same terms and at the same time.

The amendment did not impact the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

1AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, has been amended to clarify or state the
following:

- specific single disclosures that are not material do not have to be presented even
if they are minimum requirements of a standard;

- the order of notes to the financial statements is not prescribed;

- line items on the statement of financial position and the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income (OCI) should be disaggregated if this provides
helpful information to users. Line items can be aggregated if they are not material.

- specific criteria is now provided for presenting subtotals on the statement of
financial position and in the statement of profit or loss and OCI, with additional
reconciliation requirements for the statement of profit or loss and OCI; and

- the presentation in the statement of OCI of items of other comprehensive income
arising from joint ventures and equity-accounted investees accounted for using
the equity method follows the [AS | approach of splitting items that may, or that
will never, be reclassified to profit or loss.

None of the amendments noted impacted the Group’s consolidated financial
stalements.
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5. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

{(r) New and forthcoming standards and interpretations {continued)

(i) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the Company (continued)

IAS 16 and 1AS 38, Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation, are amended as follows:

The amendment to 1AS 16, Property, Plani and Equipment explicitly states that
revenue-based methods of depreciation cannot be used. This is because such methods
reflect factors other than the consumption of economic benefits embodied in the
assets.

The amendment to LAS 38, Intangible Assets introduces a rebuttable presumption that
the use of revenuc-based amortisation methods is inappropriate for intangible assets.

The amendments did not impact the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

1AS 16, Property, Plani and Equipment, and 1AS 41, Biological Assets, require a
bearer plant, defined as a living plant, to be accounted for as property, plant and
equipment and included in the scope of IAS 16 instead of IAS 41. Therefore, a
company can elect to measure bearer plants at cost, However, the produce growing
on bearer plants will continue to be measured at fair value less costs o sell under [AS
41.

The amendment did not impact the Group’s consolidated financial statements

IAS 27, Equity Method in Separate Financial Statemenis allow the use of the equity
method in separate financial statements, and apply to the accounting for subsidiaries,
equity-accounted investees, and joint ventures.

The amendment did not impact the Group’s consolidated financial statements

IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statemenis, and 1AS 28, Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures, in respect of Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture require that when a parent loses control of a
subsidiary in a transaction with an equity-accounted investee or joint venture, the full
gain be recognised when the assets transferred meet the definition of a ‘business’
under [FRS 3, Business Combinations.

The amendment did not impact the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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5. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(v) New and forthcoming standards and interpretations (continued)

(i) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the Company (continued)

IFRS 11, Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations, require
business combination accounting to be applied to acquisitions of interests in a joint
operation that constitutes a business. Business combination accounting also applies
to the additional interests in a joinl operation while the joint operator retains control.
The additional interest acquired will be measured at fair value but previously held
interests will not be remeasured.

The amendment did not impact the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interesis in
Other Entities and 1AS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventires have been
amended to introduce clarifications on which subsidiaries of an investment entity are
consolidated instead of being measured at fair value through profit or loss. IFRS 10
was amended to conflirm that the exemption from preparing consolidated financial
statements is available to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity.
An investment entity shall measure at fair value through profit or loss all of its
subsidiaries that are themselves investment entities. IAS 28 was amended to provide
an exemption from applying the equity method for investment entities that are
subsidiaries and that hold interests in equity-accounted investees and joint ventures.
IFRS 12 was amended to clarify that the relevant disclosure requirements in the
standard apply to an investment entity in which all of its subsidiaries are measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

The amendment did not impact the Group’s consolidated financial statements

(ii) New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new, revised and amended standards and interpretations have been issued which
are not yet effective for the reporting period and which the Group has not early-adopted.
The Group has assessed the relevance of all such new standards, amendments and
interpretations with respect to the Group’s operations and has determined that the
following are likely to have an effect on the consoclidated financial statements:

1AS 7, Statement of Cash flow disclosure amendment is eftective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2017 with early adoption permitted. The disclosures
enable users of the financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash and non-cash changes.
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(r) New and forthcoming standards and interpretations (continued)
(i) New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

To satisfy the new disclosure requirement, the Group intends to present a reconciliation
between opening and closing balances of liabilities with changes arising from financing
activities.

e 1AS 12, Deferred Tax Assets amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or alier January I, 2017 with early adoption permitted. The amendments clarify
the following:

— The existence of a deductible temporary difference depends solely on a
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset and its tax base at the end of the
reporting period, and is not affected by possible future changes in the carrying
amount or expected manner of recovery of the asset.

- A deferred tax asset can be recognised if the future bottom line of the tax return
is expected to be a loss, if certain conditions are met.

- Future taxable profits used to establish whether a deferred tax can be recognised
should be the amount calculated before the effect of reversing temporary
differences.

- Anentity can assume that it will recover an asset for more than its carrying amount
if there is sufficient evidence that it is probable that the entity will achieve this.

- Deductible temporary differences related to unrealised losses should be assessed
on a combined basis for recognition unless a tax law restricts the use of losses to
deductions against income of a specific type.

The amendment when effective, is not expected to impact the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

e IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018, replaces IAS 11, Construction Contracis, |1AS
18, Revenue, IFRIC 13, Customer Lovalty Programmes, IFRIC 15, Agreements for
the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18, Transfer of Assets from Customers and
SIC-31 Revenue — Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. 1t does not
apply to insurance contracts, financial instruments or lease contracts, which fall in the
scope of other IFRSs. It also does not apply if two companies in the same line of
business exchange non-monetary assets to facilitate sales to other parties.
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(r) New and forthcoming standards and interpretations (continued)

(ii) New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

IFRS 13, Revenue from Contracis with Customers (continued)

The Group will apply a five-step model to determine when to recognise revenue, and
at what amount. The model specifies that revenue should be recognised when (or as)
an entity transfers control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which
the entity expects to be entitled. Depending on whether certain criteria are met,
revenue is recognised at a point in time, when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customer; or over time, in a manner that best reflects the entity’s
performance.

There will be new qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements to describe the
nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising [rom
contracts with customers.

The Group is assessing the impact that this amendment will have on its consolidated
financial statements.

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January |, 2018, replaces the existing guidance in [AS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. 1FRS 9 includes revised
guidance on the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities,
including a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment of (inancial
asseis and new gencral hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the
guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from [AS 39.
Although the permissible measurement bases for financial assets — amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income, and fair value though profit or loss are
similar to 1AS 39, the criteria for classification into the appropriate measurement
category are significantly difTerent. IFRS 9 replaces the *incurred loss’ model in 1AS
39 with an ‘expecied credit loss’ model, which means that a loss event will no longer
need to occur before an impairment allowance is recognised.

The Group is assessing the impact that this amendment will have on its consolidated
financial statements.
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5. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(r) New and forthcoming standards and interpretations (continued)

(i) New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

IFRS 2, Classification and Measurement Shared-based payment Transactions,
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.
The amendments to IFRS 2, cover three accounting areas as follows:

o Cash-settied share-based payments are is measured using the same approach as for
equity-scttled share-based payments i.c. the modified grant date method. The new
requirements do not change the cumulative amount of expense that is ultimately
recognised, because the total consideration for a cash-settled share-based payments
is stil! equal to the cash paid on settlement.

o For classification purposes, an exception is made for a share-based payment
transaction with employees to be accounted for as equity-settled if:

- the terms of the arrangement permit or require a company to scttle the
transaction net by withholding a specified portion of equity instruments to meet
the statutory tax withholding requirement and;

- the entire share-based payment transaction would otherwise be classified as
equity-settled if there were no net settlement feature,

o The approach in accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from
cash-settled to equity-settled.

The new requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement ol these
arrangements and potentially the timing and amount of expense recognised for new
and outstanding awards.

The amendments are not expected to impact the Group’s consolidated financial
stalements.

IFRS 16, Leases, which is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019, eliminates the current dual accounting model for lessees, which
distinguishes between on-balance sheet finance leases and off-balance sheet operating
leases. Instead, there is a single, on-balance sheet accounting model that is similar to
current finance lease accounting. Companies will be required to bring all major leases
on-balance sheet, recognising new assets and liabilities. The on-balance sheet liability
will attract interest; the total lease expense will be higher in the early years of a lease
even if a lease has fixed regular rental expenses. Optional lessee exemption will apply
to short-term leases and for low-value items to be assessed by the Group.
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5. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(r) New and forthcoming standards and interpretations (continued)

(ii) New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)
Lessor accounting remains similar to current practice as the lessor will continue to
classify leases as finance and operating leases.

Early adoption of IFRS 16, Leases is permitted if IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracis
with Customers is also early adopted.

The Group is assessing the impact that this amendment will have on its consolidated
financial statements.

6. Determination of Fair Values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair
value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the methods described below. Where
applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is
disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

a) Fair value measurement

(0

(i)

Property, plant and equipment

The fair value of property, plant and equipment is the estimated amount for which
property could be exchanged on the acquisition date between a willing buyer and a
willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing, wherein the parties
had each acted knowledgeably. The fair value of items of property is based on the
market approach and cost approaches using quoted market prices for similar items when
available and depreciated replacement cost when appropriate. Depreciated replacement
cost reflects adjustments for physical deterioration as well as [unctional and economic
obsolescence.

Intangible assets

The fair value of patents and trademarks acquired in a business combination is based
on the discounted estimated royalty payments that are expected to be avoided as a result
of the patents or trademarks being owned.
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6.

Determination of Fair Values {continued)

a) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

Intangible assets (continved)

The fair value of customer relationships acquired in a business combination is
determined using the multi-period excess earnings method, whereby the subject asset is
valued after deducting a fair return on all other assets that are part of creating the related
cash flows. The fair value of other intangible assets is based on the discounted cash
flows expected to be derived from the use and eventual sale of the assels.

Inventories

The fair value of inventories acquired is determined based on the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and sale, and
a reasonable profit margin based on the effort required to complete and sell the
inventories.

Available-for-sale assets

The fair values of investments in equity and debt securities are determined with
reference to their quoted closing bid price at the measurement date, or if unquoted,
determined using a valuation technique. Valuation techniques employed include market
multiples and discounted cash flow analysis using expected future cash flows and a
market-related discount rate. Subsequent to initial recognition, the lair values of held-
to-maturity investments are determined for disclosure purposes only.

Assets held-for-sale

The fair value of assets held-for-sale is determined by market valuations performed by
independent experts, where all significant inputs of the valuation technique are directly
or indirectly observable from market data.

Trade and other receivables

The fair values of trade and other receivables are estimated at the present value of future
cash llows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the measurement date. Short-
term receivables with no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount
if the effect of discounting is immaterial. Fair value is determined at initial recognition
and, for disclosure purposes, at each annual reporting date.
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Determination of Fair Values (continued)

a)

b)

Fair value measurement (continued)
(vii} Other non-derivative financial liabilities

Other non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at fair value, at initial
recognition and for disclosure purposes, at each annual reporting date. Fair value is
calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the measurement date.

In respect of the liability component of convertible notes, the market rate of interest is
determined with reference to similar liabilities that do not have a conversion option.
For finance leases the markel rate of interest is determined with reference to similar
lease agreements.

(viii) Contingent consideration

The fair value of contingent consideration arising in a business combination is
calculated using the income approach based on the expected payment amounts and
their associated probabilities. When appropriate, it is discounted to present value.

Valuation models

The Group's accounting policy on fair value measurements is discussed in accounting policy
5(c) (vii) and (viii).

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. prices) or
indirectly (i.c. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted
market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques
where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes
all instruments where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data
and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This
category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments
where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.
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Determination of Fair Values (continued)

<)

d)

Financial instruments measured at fair value — fair value hicrarchy

Al year end, the following financial instruments were measured at fair value.

Fair
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value
$°000 $'000 $7000 $°000
2016
Available-for-sale assets 1 - 108 109
Short-term investments - 98,513 - 08513
2015
Available-for-sale assets 1 - 108 109
Short-term investments - 29,297 - 29.297

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The table below is an analysis of financial instruments not measured at fair value at the
reporting date by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement

is categorised.

Total
Fair Carrying
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value Amount
5000 $°000 $°000 $°000 £000
As at December 31, 2016
Trade receivables - 180,166 - 180,166 180,166
Trade and other payables - 65,497 - 65,497 65,497
Borrowings - 30,000 - 30,000 30,000
As at December 31,2015
Trade receivables - 264,502 - 264,502 264,502
Trade and other payables - 87,238 - 87,238 87,238
Borrowings - 50,600 - 50,600 50,600

The fair value of borrowings is estimated using discounted cash flow techniques, applying
the rates that are offered for debt securities of similar maturities and terms. The repayment

date for borrowings is March 10, 2017.
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Determination of Fair Values {continued)

c)

Non-financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group’s freehold land and buildings were last revalued on December 31, 2014 by
Linden Scott Valuation Limited, Chartered Valuation Surveyors. The valuation surveyors
used the market approach to determine the values of land and buildings respectively.

This basis of valuation was used due to the specialised nature of the properties, derived
from the exigencies of the operations. The surplus thus arising was credited to revaluation
surplus in shareholders’ equity.

Fair value measurements as at December 31, 2016 using:

Quoted prices Significant
in active markets other Significant
for identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
{Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$'000 $000 $000
Recurring fair value
measurements
Land and buildings —— - 189,827
Fair value Fair
Fair us at value
value January L, Depreciation/ carricd
hiera 2016 Additions mypairou Transfers Adjustment Torw
s S s s 3 3
Land and buildings Level3  ]189,681 663 (1,817) 1,909 {609) 189,827
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6. Determination of Fair Values (continued)
e)  Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements as at December 31, 2015 using:

Quoted prices Significant
in active markets other Significant
for identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)
$°000 $*000 $000
Recurring fair value
measurements
Land and buildings - - 189,681
Fair value Fair
Fair as at vulue
value January 1, Depreciation/ carried
hierarchy 2018 Additions _impairment Transfers  Adjustment  forward
$ S S 3 s s

Land and buildings Level 3 189472 2441  (1682) 4245 (4,795) 189,681

There were no transfers between levels | and 2 during the year.

Transfers berween levels 2 and 3

The Company’s management annually reviews the latest valuations performed by the

independent valuator for financial reporting purposes.

At each financial year end, the finance department:

e verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

e assesses property valuation movements when compared to the most recent valuation
report;

e holds discussions with the independent valuator.

The Group’s recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of
the reporting period during which the change has occurred.
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Determination of Fair Values (continued)

e)

Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

The main level 3 inputs used by the Group are derived and evaluated as follows:

Land:

The direct comparable method was used. In using this method, evidence of arm’s length
open market transactions of similar lands are analysed and the results applied to the subject
lands after taking into consideration appropriate adjustments for location, size and other
relevant factors.

Buildings:

Buildings are valued using the depreciated replacement cost method. Under this method
the gross replacement cost of the buildings and other sites works arc then estimated from
which appropriate deductions are then made to allow for the age, condition and
obsolescence (economic and functional) of the buildings in site works. The total net
replacement cost is then added to the estimated value of the land.

Inputs considered in the valuation:

(i) Most of the properties are located in an old and well-established industrial area located
immediately east of Port of Spain, and is well serviced by transportation routes and a
pool of both skilled and unskilled labour.

(i) Measurements and condition — The square footage of the site is taken into
consideration in the valuation. Based on the valuation, the buildings appear to be in
good structural and decorative repair.

The inputs above have not varied significantly in the past, and as such the impact of
movements in the variables are not considered significant.

If the freehold land and buildings were stated on the historical cost basis the amounis
would be as follows:

2016 2015

5’000 5000

Cost 554,064 561,575
Accumulated depreciation (205.819) (207.592)

Net book amount 348245 353,983
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e¢) Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2016 2015
5000 $'000

Depreciation expense is included in profit or loss as follows:
Amount included in cost of sales 11,610 13,273
Amount included in other operating expenses 4.107 2.092
15,717 15,365

7.  Financial Risk Management

Risk Management Framework

The Executive Management has set up a Risk Management Committee (RMC) to institute a
formal Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) program to ensure that key risks are aclively and
continuously identified, managed, monitored and reported. The aim is to establish a risk
management culture and communicate the importance of risk management activities to all staff,
and specify the responsibilities and accountability for risk management throughout operations.
Input is obtained from all key stakeholders including management, those charged with
Governance, legal counsel, internal and external auditors.

The Risk Management Committec also considers the emergence of new risks, and operational
management is required to report on such risks and assist in the development of mitigating
strategies to address them. The Risk Management Committee is guided by the Group’s Risk
Leader.

The Group’s Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s
policies and procedures. The Group’s Audit Committec is assisted in its oversight role by
Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.
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7.  Financial Risk Management (continued)

Risk Management Framework (continued)

As part of the overall risk management process, the Risk Management Committee has reviewed
the activities of the Group in consideration of its natural and commercial operating environments
and has identified the major risks faced by the Group.

In order to better focus the risk management efforts, risks have been classified into the following
major categories and assessed on the basis of residual exposure after consideration of the level
of management and control activities designed and implemented to specifically mitigate against
them:

Financial and reporting
Operational
Compliance

Strategic

1

The inherent risk levels (defined by their potential impact, and likelihood of occurrence in the
absence of controls) are compared to management control levels to determine the appropriate
risk response specifically, whether risks should be monitored or accepted or conversely, whether
controls should be monitored or improved.

The Risk Management Committee manages and updates the Risk Register which details for each
core [unctional area, the major risks identified, key drivers and meirics related to cach risk, risk
owner (with direct responsibility for managing the risk), the response adopted, type and
frequency of monitoring, and action plan for implementation of the documented risk response,

Updates to the Risk Register are performed at least twice per year with the input from all
functional areas to ensure that documented risks and related ratings, responses and actions plans
are relevant in the context of the Group’s operations. The Group’s insurance structures are
influenced by the findings of the risk management reviews. The Group’s risk management
methodology are underpinned by the principles of ISO 31000: 2009 Risk Management, with
certain elements of the COSO Enterprise Risk Management-Integrated Framework also adopted.

The risk management process is dynamic and requires ongoing review and revision to enable the
Group to maintain a position of strength in relation to inherent and residual risks. The process is
continuously refined in response to environmental changes from both a natural and operating
perspective.
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7. Financial Risk Management {continued)

Operational Risk Management
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- creditrisk
- liquidity risk
- capital risk.

This Note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the
Group’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s
management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these
consolidated financial statements.

{a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Group’s receivables from customers.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics
of each customer. However, management also considers factors which may influence the
credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in
which customers operate.

The Group has identified certain concentrations of credit risk related to the geographic
dispersion of export customers. It has instituted policics and procedures to ensure that
credit sales of products are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. The
Group's Credit Committee has established a revised credit policy under which each new
customer is analysed for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard payment and
delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Group's review includes external ratings
when available, and in some cases bank references. Sales limits are established for each
customer and are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any sales exceeding those limits require
approval in accordance with the credit approval hierarchy as set out in the Group’s credit
policy. Customers that fail to meet the Group’s benchmark creditworthiness may transact
with the Group only on a cash or advance payment basis.
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7.

Financial Risk Management (continued)

Operational Risk Management (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

For the purposes of credit risk assessment, customers are segregated into categories and
reviews take account of the specific trading relationship of each category of debtor with the
Company. Credit risk assessment presents significant implications for two major categories
ol deblors: trade receivables and related party receivables.

Trade receivables — Management assesses the creditworthiness of major trade customers
on an ongoing basis and revises credit limits based on the findings of analyses performed.
Discretionary allowances are made for individual customers where temporary breaches in
credit limits are deemed acceptable. Preferred customers who trade in high volumes
typically benefit from adjustments to their credit terms at the year-end.

Related party receivables — Trade with related parties occurs on terms comparable with
those offered to third parties. Significant transactions falling outside the scope of regular
trade require approval by the Board of Directors. Transactions undertaken with related
parties are monitored during the year to ensure agreement of balances by relevant parties.

In 20135, the Group adopted a new model for export trading with EMEAA (Europe, Middle
East, Asia, and Africa) countrics. As a result, the Group now trades directly with
approximately sixty {(60) overseas distributors where in prior periods, a master distributor
managed these distributors. This model has exposed the Group to increased credit and
market risks (market risk in the form of currency risk, discussed below in Note 7(c)(i)).

Credil risk in this respect has been managed through the credit review process, as all new
distributors are verified using external ratings (and bank and other references where
necessary), to determine the extent of credit facilities to be offered. New distributors have
presented significant payment issues since trading commenced.

The Group is closely monitoring the economic environment in the Eurozone and is taking
actions to limit its exposure to customers in countries experiencing particular economic
volatility. Measures adopted in relation to high risk customers include the establishment of
standby letters of credit for certain sales, and requirement for advance payments {rom
certain customers in regions where availability of currency is challenging.

Credit risk with banks and financial institutions is managed through the purchase and sale
of foreign currency, transfer of balances between financial institutions to take advantage of
interest rates, and where beneficial to the Company, investment in short term, easily
convertible, liquid assets and maintenance of flexible lines of credit. The Group’s policy
on short term investments is that underlying instruments must comprise Trinidad and
Tobago Government bonds with bonds held directly in the Group.
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7.  Financial Risk Management (continued)

Operational Risk Management (continued)

(a)

{b)

Credit risk (continued)

Where qualifying underlying assets are unavailable, the Group can consider other low risk
products such as mutual funds.

In addition, the Group maintains banking relationships with prominent local and foreign
banks with a proven history of stability and corporate resilience. The financial results of
banking institutions are monitored by Management and frequent liaison with
representatives of banks ensures early warnings are received in the event that banks
encounter the risk of financial or operational difficulties.

The table below shows the carrying values at the reporting date of major categories of
debtors and financial institutions.

2016 2015
$000 $°000

Trade receivables:
Third party — net (Note 15) 178,898 260,371
Related party — net (Note 33(iv) 3.268 4,131
180,166 264,502
Short-term investments (Note 16) 98.513 29,297
278,679 293,799

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred
losses in respect of trade and other receivables. Unimpaired amounts that are past due by
more than 30 days are considered collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour
and extensive analysis of customer credit risk, including underlying customers’ credit
ratings where available. Information on the exposures to credit risk is provided in Note 15.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter dilTiculty in meceting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s
reputation. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group aims to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.
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i

Financial Risk Management {continued)

Operational Risk Management (continucd)

(b)

(©)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group uses activity-based standard costing to cost its products and services, which
assists it in monitoring cash flow requirements and optimizing its cash return on
investments. Typically the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on hand to meet
expected working capital requirements and operational expenses including the servicing of
financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that
cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. Information on the maturity
profile of significant contractual obligations is provided in Notes 20 and 22.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices will affect the Group’s income or the valuc of its holdings of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return to the
Group.

(i) Currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange currency risk
arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollar, Euro
and Pound Sterling. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions
and recognised assets and liabilities.

As at the year end all debt carried by the Group was held in the functional currency of
the Group and as such, no currency exposure was noted in respect of borrowings.

The Group considers revenuc and receivables in US dollars to be the greatest source of
currency risk, especially where customers are domiciled in non-US territories. Sales to
EMEAA countries are invoiced in US dollars as is the case for all export customers.
The primary mitigating factor against currency exposure from sales and receivables is
the Group’s US dollar denominated purchases and payables. The Group is a net earner
of US dollars. Information on the exposures to currency risk is provided in Note 15.

(if) Price risk
The Group does not have a policy for managing price risk arising from the
investments held in foreign currencies. No significant price risk in respect of such
investments has been identified at the year-end since all investments in foreign
currencies have been fair valued and foreign operations are not significant to the
Group.
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7.

Financial Risk Management (continued)

Operational Risk Management (continued)

()

Market risk (continued)
(iii) Interest rate risk

The Group has significant interest-bearing liabilities in the form of revolving term
borrowings. There are no significant interest-bearing assets. Revolving term
borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to interest rate risk.

Differences in contractual re-pricing or maturity dates and changes in interest rates
expose the Group to interest rate risk. The Group’s exposure to interest rate risks on
its financial liabilities are disclosed in Note 19.

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Various scenarios
are simulated taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions,
allernative financing and hedging. Based on these scenarios, the Group calculates the
impact on profit and loss of a defined intcrest rate shift. For cach simulation, the
interest rate shift is determined based on expected market movements and anticipated
changes arising from ongoing negotiations. The scenarios are run only for liabilities
that represent major interest-bearing positions.

The Group assesses its interest burden and ranks its debt from high to low in relation
to the demands placed on working capital for servicing. High interest facilities and
facilitics denominated in volatile currencies are considered first for refinancing,
followed by lower interest rate borrowings and borrowings denominated in stable
currencies or the functional currency of the Group.

(d) Capital risk

The Group’s policy is lo maintain a strong capital base in order to ensure investor, creditor
and market confidence, and to sustain future development of the business. Management
monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary sharcholders.
The Board of Directors seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings, and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position.

In managing capital, the Group aims to safeguard its going concern status; provide returns
for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and maintain an optimal structure to
reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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7. Financial Risk Management (continued)

Operational Risk Management (continued)
(¢) Capital risk (continued)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings (including ‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents.

8. Segment Information

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by
Executive Management to make strategic decisions.

The segment results for the year ended December 31, 2016 are as follows:

Branded Commodity

Trade Trade Total _

$'000 $000 5000
Revenue 507,540 112,929 620,469
Results from operating activities 163.982 9,000 172,982
Finance cost - - (1,181)
Finance income - - 642
Results from continuing operations - - 172,443
Other Income - - 1,888
Dividend income - - 220
Foreign exchange gains - - 12,802
Legal expense - - (15.948)
Group profit before tax - - 171,405
Tax expense - - (49.448)
Profit for the yecar 121,957

The assets and liabilities of the Group are not allocated by segment.
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8.

Segment Information {(continued)

The segment results for the year ended December 31, 2015 were as follows:

Branded Commodity

Trade Trade Total

$°000 000 5000
Revenue 511,515 137,894 649,409
Results from operating activities 199,055 13,663 212,718
Finance cost c o (1,402)
Finance income - - 154
Results from continuing operations - - 211,470
Other Income - - 2,047
Dividend income - - 1,108
Foreign exchange gains - - 620
Fair value gains on asset held-for-sale - - 2,745
Group profit before tax - - 217,990
Tax expense - - {54.318)
Profit for the year 163,672

Segments are aggregated on the basis of product nature, as this quality has been assessed as
having the greatest impact on trading criteria. Specifically, the following characteristics of
trade are influenced by the nature of products:

— Geographical location of customer

— Type of customer

— Extent of markeling investment

— Treatment of selling and logistics expenses.

Branded trade refers to products that carry specific differentiating characteristics, which make
them unique to the Group and distinguishable from competitor products. These products are
marketed in accordance with approved brand plans. Commodity trade refers to products that
possess characteristics which can reasonably be attained by comparable producers in the spirits
industry. These products are generally not heavily marketed, and provide strategic benefits to
the Group apart from outright contribution to profits.
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9.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Plant, Casks
Land and Machinery & and Assets in
Buildings Equipment Pallcts  Progress Total
$°000 $000 5000 $°000 $°000
December 31, 2016
Cost or revaluation
Balance as at January | 198,227 313,624 44,125 9,702 565,678
Additions 663 6,443 4,308 2,978 14,392
Transfers 1,909 480 - (2,389 -
Disposals - {16,589) {1,203) (87) (17,879)
Adjustments (609 83 - - (526)
Balance as at December 31 200,190 304,041 47,230 10,204 561.665
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at January | {8,546) (166,596) (30,898) - (206,040)
Depreciation charge (1,817 {10.904) (2,996) - (15,717)
Disposals - 16.434 1.056 - 17,490
Balance as at December 31 (10.363) (161.066) (32.838) - (204.267)
At December 31, 2016
Cosl or valuation 200,190 304,041 47,230 10,204 361,665
Accumulated depreciation (10.363) (161.066) (32.838) - (204.267)
Net book value 189.827 142,975 14,392 10,204 357,398

The net book value of property, plant and equipment, excluding fair value adjustment for land
and buildings, is $348,245 thousand {2015: $353,983 thousand).
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9.

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Plant, Casks
Land and Machinery & and Assets in
Buildings  Equipmgent Palicts  Progress Total
$°000 $*000 $000 $'000 $°000

December 31,2015
Cost or revaluation
Balance as at January | 193,052 268,085 36,262 34,265 531,664
Additions 2,441 20,710 2,694 4,246 30,091
Transfers 4,245 26,881 - (31,126) -
Disposals - (547) (1,150) - (1,697)
Adjustments {1.511N {1.505) 6,319 2317 5.620
Balance as at December 31 198,227 313.624 44.125 9,702 565.678
Accumuiiated depreciation
Balance as at January | {3,580) {159,794) (21,032) - (184,406)
Depreciation charge (1,682) (10,699) (2,984) - (15,365)
Disposals - 495 209 - 1,404
Adjustments (3.284) 3.402 (7.791) - (71.673)
Balance as at December 31 (8.546) (166.596) (30.898) - (206.040)
At December 31, 2015
Cost or valuation 198,227 313,624 44,125 9,702 565,678
Accumulated depreciation {8.546) {166.596) (30.898) - (206.040)
Net book value 189.681 147,028 13,227 9,702 359,638

The net book value of property, plant and equipment, excluding fair value adjustment for land
and buildings, is $353,983 (2014: $345,530).
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10.

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The Group’s land and buildings are subject to revaluation every five years and were iast
revalued on December 31, 2014 by qualified independent experts. Valuations were done on
the basis of market value. Revaluation surpluses and losses were recognised within
‘revaluation surpluses’ in other reserves (Note 18) or ‘other expenses’ in profit or loss, as
described in Note 5(d)(i).

Available-for-Sale Assets

2016 2015
5000 $000
Balance at January | and December 31 109 109
Available-for-sale assets include the following:
Listed equity securities — English speaking Caribbean 1 1
Unlisted securities 108 108
109 109
Investent in Joint Venture
Company Country of incorporation Percentage Owned
2016 2015
Tobago Plantations Limited Trinidad and Tobago 50% 50%

The carrying value of the joint venture operation was reduced to nil in 2007 when the Group’s
share of the operating losses incurred by the joint venture surpassed the carrying value of the
investrent. It is the Group's policy to recognise a share of losses only to the extent of its
investment in the joint venture operation.
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12.

Retirement Benefit (Asset) Obligation

The Group’s pension fund plans are funded by the Group and employees. The funding
requirements are based on the pension fund’s actuarial measurement performed by an

independent qualified actuary.

The plan exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as longevity risk, currency risk, interest

rate risk and market risk.

i. Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are determined as

follows:

Fair value of plan assets
Deferred benefit obligation

2016 2015
$'000 $°000
(348,680)  (355,237)
293,937 294,595
(54,743) (60.642)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are represented

by:

Nel defined benefit asset

Net defined benefit liability:

- Asset-backed post-retirement benefit obligation
- Cash funded post-retirement benefit obligation

2016 2015
$*000 $°000
(63,986) (69,561)
380 1,191
8.863 7,728
£54.743)  (60.642)
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12. Retirement Benefit (Asset) Obligation (continued)

ii. Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability

Defined Fair Value of Net Defined Benefit
Benefit Obligation Plan Assets (Asset) Liability
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
$*000 5000 5000 5000 $'000 $'000
Balance at January 1 204,595 275,250 (355.237)  (339.964) (60.642) (64.714)
Included in prafit and loss
Current service cast 11,638 11,375 - - 11,638 11,375
Pasl service cost 1,790 - - - 1,790 -
Interest cost (income) 14,475 13,437 (17,754)  (16,993) (3,279) (3,558)
Administrative expenses - - 295 290 295 290
27,903 24.812 (17.459) (16.705) 10,444 8.107
Included in other
comprehensive income
Remeasurement (gain) loss:
— Adjustment 4 - - = (4) -
- Actuarial {(gain) loss arising
from
« financial assumplions 22,257 - - - (22,257) -
# experience adjustments 4,095 4,176 - - 4,095 4,176
— Return on plan assets
excluding interest income - - 24,002 1.602 24,002 1.602
(18.166) 4,176 24,002 1.602 5.836 5,778
Other
Contributions paid by
employer and members 3,524 3,532 (11,745)  (11,774) (8,221) (8,242)
Benefits paid (13.919) (13.175) 11,759 11.604 (2,160} (1.571)
(10.395) (9.643) 14 170y (10,381) (9.813)
Balance as at December 31 293937 294,595 (348,680) (355,237  (54.743) (60,642}
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12. Retirement Benefit (Asset) Obligation (continued)

ifi. Summary of principal actuarial assumptions as at 31 December

2016 2015
Discount rate 5.5% 5.0%
Average individual salary increase 4.5% 4.5%
Future pension increases 0.0% 0.0%

Assumptions regarding future mortality rates are based on the published mortality tables.

The life expectancies underlying the value of the defined benefit obligation as at December
31 are as follows:

2016 2015
Life expectancy at age 60 for current pensioner in years:
- Male 21.8 21.8
- Female 25.6 25.6
Life expectancy at age 60 for current members age 40 in years:
- Male 21.8 21.8
- Female 25.6 25.6
2016 2015
$'000 $°000
iv. Asset allocation
Insured managed fund contract 345,764 352,104
Immediate annuity policies 2916 3.133
348,680 355,237

The value of the Plan’s investment in the managed fund contract at December 31, 2016 was
provided by the insurer (CLICQ} but is based on unit prices as at June 30, 2016.

The Plan’s assets are mostly invested in an insured managed [und contract with CLICO. The
value of this policy is reliant on the financial strength of CLICO. Other than the purchase of
immediate annuity polices for some of the Plan’s pensioners, there are no asset/liability
matching strategies used by the Plan.
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12. Retirement Benefit (Asset) — Obligation (continued)

i,

Vi,

Asset allecation (continued)

2016 2015
%o Yo

Plan assets arc comprised as follows:
Cquity 26.0 50.0
Debt securities 58.5 41.8
Other (short-ierm securities) 15.5 8.2

In 2016 no percentage of the managed fund asset was invested in the Company’s ordinary
shares (2015: 11.7%).

Sensitivity Analysis

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the assumptions used. The
following table summarises how the defined benefit obligation as at December 31, 2016
would have changed as a result of a change in the assumptions used.

1% pa 1% pa

Decrease Increase
$°000 5000

Discount rate 47,430 (37,307
Future salary {13,499) 15,666

An increase of | year in the assumed life expectancies shown above would increase the
defined benefit obligation at the year-end by $4,073 (2015: $4,249).

Funding

The Group meets the balance of the cost of funding the defined benefit plan and must pay
contributions as least equal to those paid by the members, which are fixed. The funding
requirements are based on the regular (at least every 3 years) actuarial valuations of the Plan
and the assumptions used to determine the funding required may differ from those set out
above.

The Group expects to pay the following in 2017:

$000
s  Pension Plan contribution 8,170
*  Lump Sum payments 124
s  Unfunded pension plan 1,103
2,397
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13.  Inventories
Raw and packaging materials

Work in progress
Finished goods

Provision for obsolescence

14.  Assets Held-for-Sale
Balance at January |
Fair value gains

Disposals

Balance at December 31

__2016 2015
7000 $7000
65,493 69,961
106,712 117,418
45338 41,829
217,543 229,208
(3.466) (2.131)
214,077 227,077
3,439 1,423
- 2,745
(1.383) (729)
2.056 3,439

There were no impairment provisions on assets held-for-sale at the year-end (2015: $NIL).

15.  Trade and Other Receivables
Trade receivables
Provision for impairment of trade receivables
Receivables from related parties — net {(Note 33 (iv))
Trade receivables — net

Prepayments and other receivables
Taxation recoverable

2016 2015
$'000 5’000
192,982 278,129
{16.084) (17.758)
176,898 260,371
3.268 4.131
180,166 264,502
982 824
10,725 9.039
191,873 274,365
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15,

Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

There are no major concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as the Group
has a large number of customers that are internationally dispersed. The Group has identified
receivables from EMEAA customers as a potential source of credit risk and has taken
appropriate steps to manage this exposure as explained in Note 7(a).

The aging of trade and other receivables at the year-end was:

Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
2016 2016 2015 2015
$°000 $*000 $°000 $°000
Not past due 131,739 - 160,192 -
Past due 0 — 30 days 32,593 - 66,021 -
Past due 31 — 60 days 10,857 - 13,076 -
Past due 61 — 90 days 7,937 - 9,883 -
Past due 90 — 120 days 1,031 - 4,253 -
Past due more than 120 days 32.190 (22.770y _43412 (24.472)
216,347 (22.770) 298.837 (24 472)

As of December 31, 2016, trade receivables of $9,420 (2015: $18,940) were more than 120
days past due but not impaired. This balance related to a number of third party customers for
whom there was no history of default and management held the opinion that these amounts
were collectible. The ageing of these receivables is as disclosed above.

Impaired receivables of $22,770 (2015: $24,472) relate primarily to wholesalers and retailers

that have defaulted on payments.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are denominated in the

following currencies:

United States dollar
Trinidad and Tobago dollar
Canadian dollar

Euro

2016 2015
§'000 5000
67,679 107,706
123,264 165,243
26 143

904 1.273
191,873 274,365
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Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

Exposure to currency risk

The Group analyses the exposure of its major export receivables to fluctuations in the United
States (US) dollar exchange rate. The US dollar exchange rate has been assessed as presenting
the grealest exposure to markel risk in the form of currency risk, since the majority of export
sales are invoiced and collected in US dollars.

Year ended December 31, 2016

Currency TTD % of Trade
receivables
UsD 67,679 35%

Year ended December 31, 2015

Currency TTD % of Trade
receivables
USD 107,706 39.3%

The management of foreign currency risk against exchange gap limits is further supplemented
by monitoring the sensitivity of the possible impact on net profits before tax and on equity of
Nuctuations of the US dollar foreign exchange rate relative to the Trinidad and Tobago dollar.

The table below sets out the effect on the Group’s profit or loss and ‘Trade and other
receivables’ of a shifi in the US dollar exchange rate against the Trinidad and Tobago dollar.
For the purposes of the analysis, the movement in the rate from the year end to March 15, 2017
was assessed, and imputed as the sensitivity range. The sensitivity was a 0.9% depreciation in
the rate of exchange.

The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

2016 2015

$°000 $°000

Net impact on profit or loss and trade and other receivables 200 984
2016 2015

Resulting % of trade and other receivables 35.1% 39.6%
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15.

16.

Trade and Other Receivables {continued)

Movements during the year in the provision for impaired trade receivables were as follows:

2016 2015

5’000 $'000

At January | 17,758 14,688
Write ofT against provision (4,278) -

Increase in provision 2.604 3,070

At December 31 16,084 17,758

Related party provision (Note 33(iv)) 6.686 6.714

Total provision for impaired trade and other receivables 22 472

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included in *selling
and marketing expenses’ in profit or loss. Amounts charged to the allowance account are
generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash. None of the
classes within trade and other receivables contain impaired assets other than as disclosed above.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of cach class of
receivable mentioned above. None of the trade and other receivables of the Group are pledged
as collateral for borrowings (2015: NIL).

2016 2015

$*000 $'000
Short-Term Investments
Balance at January 29,297 -
Additions 66,809 29,297
Interest capitalised 470 -
Foreign exchange gains 1,937 -
Balance at December 31 98,513 29297

Short term investments include Repurchase agreements supported by the US dollar bonds
issued by the Government of the Republic of Trinidad and Tobago.
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17. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand

2016 2015
5°000 5000
182,749 125,302

The Group had no material exposure to interest rate risk arising from cash and cash equivalents

held at the year-end.

18.  Share Capital

Authorised

Number of ordinary shares in issue (000)

Treasury shares (000)

Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares {$’000)
Treasury shares ($°000)

2016 2015
206,277 206,277

{457) (457)
205,82 205,82
119,369 119,369

{811) (811)
118,558 118,558

Issued and fully paid up shares comprise 119,369 thousand (2015: 119,369 thousand) ordinary

shares ol no par value.

19. Other Reserves

Balance at January 1, 2016 and
December 31, 2016

Balance at January 1, 2015 and
December 31, 2015

Revaluation Capital

Surplus Reserves Total

5000 $000 5000
91,069 8,846 99915
91,069 8. 846 99915

Capital reserves represent general reserves as well as accumulated net revaluation gains held

on land and buildings.

69



ANGOSTURA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Nates to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016
2016 2015
5000 5000
20. Borrowings
Unsecured borrowings 0,000 0

The Group’s borrowings comprise amounts drawn against trade revolver facilities.

The trade revolver is subject to floating interest, payable quarterly and re-set every six months.
Principal payments are due six months after each drawdown.

The effective interest rates on debt servicing for the year were as follows:

2016 2015

Type of borrowing

Unsecured borrowings o 2 40

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

2016 2015
$°000 $°000
Trinidad and Tobago dollar 30,000 50,600

Interest rate risk
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes and the contractual re-pricing
dates at the reporting date are as follows:

__2016 2015
$000 $'000
6 months or less 30,000 50,600

None of the Group’s borrowings were subject to fixed interest rates (2015: $NIL)

Liquidity risk

__2016 2015
$°000 $°000

The undiscounted contractual cash flows are as follows:
Due in 6 months 30,171 50,794

Undiscounted cash flows include estimated interest payments.

There were no loans from related parties at the year-end (2015: NIL).
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21.

Deferred Taxation

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when thete is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to seitie the balances on a net
basis. The Group does not offset deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities within the

consolidated statement of financial position.

i. The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year is as follows:

Charged to Charged

_2015 Profit or Lass __ to OCI 2016
$°000 $°000 $000 $°000

Deferred tax liabilities
Accelerated tax depreciation (46,123) (11,052) - (57,175)
Pension asset (15.161) (2.721) 1.459 (16,423)
(61,284) {13,773} 1,459 {73,598)

Charged to Charged

2014 Profit or Loss _ to OCI 2015
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000

Deferred tax liabilities
Accelerated tax depreciation (35,783) (10,340) - (46,123)
Pension asset (16.179 {426) 1.444 {15.161)
(31,962) {10,766) 1,444 {61,284)

ii. The gross movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

2016 2015
§000 $°000
Balance at January | (61,284) {51,962)
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss (Note 29) (13,773) {10,766)
oCl 1.459 1.444
Balance at December 31 (73,5981 (61.284)
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2016 2015
5’000 5’000

22.  Trade and Other Payables
Trade payables 25,203 30,047
Amounts due to related parties (Note 33(vi)) 2,410 2410
Provisions 4,769 31,255
Accruals 24,162 19,841
Other payables 2.380 3.685
65,497 87,238

Provisions comprise mainly the estimated costs related to legal matters and other amounts for
which expenses are expected to be incurred in the future.

Accruals comprise amounts due in respect of known obligations of the Group at the year-end.

The maturity profile of trade and other payables is stated below:

2016 2015
$000 $'000
< 1 year 65,497 87,238
23.  Operating Profit
Included in operating profit are the following operating expense items:
2016 2015
5000 $'000
Deprecialion (Note 9) 15,717 (15,365)
Employee benefits (Note 31) (121,974) (144,803)
Operating lease payments (Note 32) (2,307) {3,034
Research and development (736) (414)
Repairs and maintenance (12,173 (12.503)
24. Finance Costs
Unsecured borrowings 1,181 1,402

The effective rates of interest on debt servicing for the year are included in Note 20.
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__ 2016 2015
$000 $°000
25. Other Income
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (389) 72
Other income 2,277 495
Gain on disposal of investment - 1.480
1888 2,047
26. Dividend Income
Dividend income 220 1,108
27.  Foreign Exchange Gains
Foreign exchange gains 12,802 620
Foreign exchange gains and losses represent amounts arising on the settlement of foreign
currency transactions at arm’s length, in the normal course of business, as well as the translation
of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents at the reporting date.
28.  Legal Claim Expense
Legal claim expense related to the settlement of a matter during the year. Anamountof$17,012
was previously provided for in respect of the matter. The total claim was settled at $32,960 in
2016.
2016 2015
$000 5’000
29, Taxation Expense
Current charge {32,409) (42,419)
Deferred tax expense (Note 21(ii)) {13,773) (10,766)
Revenue based taxes — Green Fund levy (3.266) {1.133)
Net expense {49,448) (54318
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29.  Taxation Expense (continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from that calculated at the statutory tax rate
applicable to profits of the Group companies as follows:

2016 2015

$°000 $'000

Profit before tax 171,405 217,990
Tax charge at slatutory rate of 25% 42,851 54,498
Non-deductible expenses 5,619 1,355
Income not subject to tax (2,288) (2,608)
Revenue based taxes — Green Fund levy 3.266 1.133
49,448 54318

30.  Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders
of the Group by the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, excluding ordinary
shares purchased by the Group and held as treasury shares.

2016 201
Prafit attributable to equity holders of the Company {$°000) 121,957 163,672

Number of ordinary shares in issue (000) (Note 18) 205,820 2 2
Basic and diluted carnings per share (§) 0.59 0.80
__2016 2015
5'000 $°000

31. Employee Benefits

Wages, salaries and other benefits 119,755 114,668
Pension costs — defined benefit plans 2219 135
121,974 114,803
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32.

33.

Leases

The Group has non-cancellable operating leases for vehicles and office space.

2016 2015
$°000 $'000
Expense for the year (2307) (3.034)
Future minimum lease payments under these leases at
December 31 are as follows:
Within [ year 1,449 2,307
Between 2 and 5 years 1,119 2.648
2,568 4,955
Related Party Transactions
The following transactions were carried out with related parties during the year:
2016 2015
$*000 $000
i) Sales of goods and services
Sales of goods:
- Entities controlled by Parent 7.450 7.541
Interest, dividends and other income:
- Entities controlled by Parent - 77
- Key management - 65
- 142
7.450 7,683
i) Purchases of goods and services
Purchases of goods:
- Entities controlled by Parent 182 526
Purchases of services and interest charges:
- Entities controlled by Parent 11.950 12.112
12,132 12,638
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2016 2015
$’000 $°000

33. Related Party Transactions (continued)

iii)  Key management compensation

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 11,047 15,327
Pension contributions 797 842
11,844 16,169

Key management compensation includes salaries, incentives, non-cash benefits and
contributions 1o as savings plan and defined benefit pension plan (Note 12).

From time to time directors of the Group, or other related entities, may buy goods from
the Group. These purchases are on the same terms and conditions as those entered into
by other company employees or customers.

2016 2015
$*000 $°000
Year-end balances arising from sales/purchases of
goods/services
Current receivables from related parties:
- Parent 984,559 984,559
- Provision for impairment of receivable (984.559) (984.559)

There were no movements in the provision related to the Group’s parent company
receivable during the year.

During the year, negotiations commenced between the management of the Group and its
parent company, with respect to settlement of the intercompany receivable. An expert
consultant was engaged to assist with developing a settlement structure. As at year end
and date of approval of these consolidated financial statements there were no indications
that the provision for impairment related to the receivable should be revised.
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__2016 2015
$000 $'000
33. Reclated Party Transactions (continued)
i) Year-end balances arising from sales/purchases of
goods/services (continued)
- Entities controlled by Parent 9,238 10,209
- Provision for impairment of receivables {6.686) (6.714)
2,552 3,495
- Key management 716 636
3.268 4131
Analysis of movements in related party impairment provisions:
Opening balance 6,714 6,932
Amounts written off against provision (28) (218)
Closing provision 6,686 6,714

All outstanding balances with these related parties are conducted on an arm’s length

basis. None of the balances are sccured.

__2016 2015
$'000 5'000
v} Loans to related parties
- Equity-accounted investees 4,989 4,089
- Provision for impairment of receivables {4.98%9) (4.989)
vi)  Payables and provisions in respect of related parties (Note 20)
- Parent 2410 2410
vii}  Other charges due to related parties
- Entities controlled by Parent 1,438 1,634
- Key management 4.176 3,258
5614 4,892

77



ANGOSTURA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016

34.

35.

Capital Commitments

At the year-end, capital commitments amounted to $25,816 (2015: $59,711).

Events after the Reporting Date

On March 27, 2017 the Board of Directors declared a final dividend in respect of 2016 of 18¢
per share. The total dividend declared in respect of 2016 was 30¢ (2015: 30¢) per share.

There were no events occurring after the reporting date and before the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors that require adjustment to or
disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.

78








